
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

CORD Meeting 

Friday, September 21, 2018 

 

Johnson Hall, 3rd Floor Conference Room 

107 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 

 

Time: 9:30 A.M.  

 
AGENDA

 

I. ROLL CALL AND INTRODUCTIONS 

 

II. LAND CONSERVATION INVESTMENT PROGRAM (LCIP) 

 

A. Request by the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources to re-route 

approximately 750 linear feet of the West Side Road within the Nash Stream 

State Forest to a more environmentally appropriate location and to eliminate an 

erosion problem. 

 

III. MINUTES 

 

A. Approval of July 12, 2018 draft minutes. 

B. Approval of August 31, 2018 draft minutes. 

   

IV. OTHER BUSINESS 

 

 

Reminder - 2018 Meeting Dates 

 January 11   March 8 (cancelled due to inclement weather)  

 May 10   July 12 (meeting to be held in NHDRA’s Training Room) 

 August 31 (special meeting) September 21 

 November 8 

NH Office of Strategic Initiatives 

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall 

Concord, NH 03301 

Phone: 603-271-2155 

Fax: 603-271-2615 

https://www.nh.gov/osi/planning/programs/cord/meetings/documents/20180712-minutes.pdf
https://www.nh.gov/osi/planning/programs/cord/meetings/documents/20180831-minutes.pdf












MEMBER AGENCIES:  Office of Energy and Planning • Resources and Economic Development • Environmental Services 
Agriculture, Markets, and Food • Fish and Game • Safety • Education • Health and Human Services • Transportation 

Cultural Resources • Administrative Services • New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority 

 
 

FINDINGS REGARDING ATV/UTV USE IN NASH STREAM FOREST 
ADOPTED BY CORD ON DECEMBER 8, 2016   (8-0) 

 
 
 
General Findings: 
 
The Council finds that in order to perform its statutory duty to manage LCIP lands, members 
must review and find that any use of ATV/UTVs, as currently defined by statute, within Nash 
Stream Forest is consistent with the principles set forth in RSA 162-C:6 prior to implementation. 
 
CORD further finds that any ATV/UTV use in Nash Stream Forest must be limited to specific 
ATV/UTV trails approved by CORD in advance.  In order to be consistent with the principles set 
forth in RSA 162-C:6, CORD finds that each proposed ATV/UTV trail must meet the following 
conditions:  (1) the trail must be designed, sited, and used so that it preserves and does not 
adversely impact natural resources and conservation attributes of the property and does not 
interfere with or detract from the other uses of Nash Stream Forest; (2) the trail must be 
authorized in a current management plan, which has been reviewed by CORD for consistency 
with RSA 162-C:6 and has had appropriate public and state agency input; (3) the trail must 
comply with the requirements of  RSA 215-A and all other applicable ATV/UTV and 
environmental regulations and standards, and the state’s most recently adopted best management 
practices for trail construction and erosion control; (4) after construction, the trail must be 
continually managed to protect natural resources and conservation attributes and to limit 
interference with other uses of Nash Stream Forest; (5) CORD must be adequately informed on 
an ongoing basis of the status of management, maintenance, and enforcement efforts related to 
ATV/UTV use, as well as impacts of ATV/UTV trails on the Nash Stream Forest; and (6) CORD 
reserves the right to periodically reassess whether ATV/UTV use in the Nash Stream Forest, or 
on any of the trails therein, remains consistent with RSA 162-C:6 and reserves the right to 
temporarily or permanently close trails if necessary as circumstances change over time. 
 
 
West Side Trail: 
 
The Council finds that the use of ATV/UTVs on the West Side Trail, as currently managed, is 
consistent with its management obligations under RSA 162-C:6 as long as: (1) the memoranda of 
agreement required by RSA 215-A:42 relating to monitoring, maintenance, and enforcement 

NH Office of Energy and Planning 
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall 

Concord, NH 03301 
Phone: 603-271-2155 
Fax: 603-271-2615 



 

2 
 

remain up-to-date and contain sufficient detail and safeguards to ensure that the trail is 
maintained in a safe and environmentally appropriate manner; and (2) conditions and use of the 
trail do not change in such a way that makes continued use of ATV/UTVs on the West Side Trail 
inconsistent with the requirements of RSA 162-C:6 as determined by CORD. 
 
Kelsey Notch Trail: 
 
The Council finds that, based on current available information, it is not able to determine at this 
time whether continued use of ATV/UTVs on the Kelsey Notch Trail is consistent with CORD’s 
management obligations under RSA 162-C:6.  In order to assist in this determination, CORD 
requests the following additional information regarding the use, maintenance, and impacts of 
ATV/UTVs at this location: 
 

1. By the January 12, 2017 CORD meeting, DRED shall submit to CORD for review the 
following: 

 
a. An updated coarse and fine filter analysis of the Kelsey Notch Trail, pursuant to RSA 

215-A:43; 
b. An interagency memorandum of understanding, pursuant to RSA 215-A:42; and 
c. Written agreements between DRED and a local ATV/UTV club, pursuant to RSA 

215-A:42. 
 

2. At such time that CORD has reviewed the information above and determined that it is 
sufficient for the Kelsey Notch Trail to provisionally re-open for ATV/UTV use, DRED 
shall then submit the following to CORD for review as they become available:  
 

a. The annual reports required pursuant to the interagency memorandum of      
understanding; and 

b. Such additional reasonable and appropriate studies, data, and information as 
CORD may require to adequately assess whether the continued use of ATV/UTVs 
on the Kelsey Notch Trail is consistent with RSA 162-C:6. 
 

3. CORD will assess this additional information for three years (beginning in 2017) and at 
the end of this time period, or at any other time as circumstances dictate, CORD shall  
determine, based on available information: 
 

a. That additional information and assessment is necessary to determine whether the 
use of ATV/UTVs on the Kelsey Notch Trail is consistent with RSA 162-C:6; or 

b. That use of ATV/UTVs on the Kelsey Notch Trail is consistent with RSA 162-
C:6, subject to the general conditions for any ATV/UTV use in Nash Stream 
Forest; or  

c. That ATV/UTV use on the Kelsey Notch Trail is not consistent with RSA 162-
C:6 and the trail shall cease to be open for ATV/UTV use. 

 
4. During the pendency of CORD’s review of the Kelsey Notch Trail no expansion of the 

area of disturbance for ATV/UTV use shall be permitted without prior CORD approval. 
 



MOTION ON GUIDANCE TO DRED REGARDING ATV TRAIL OPTIONS  
FOR 2016 REVISED NASH STREAM FOREST MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 
 
“In looking at the three options presented to CORD from DRED, and given the preliminary 
findings of the Technical Team, Option 3 would not be consistent with both the management 
vision as well as RSA 162-C:6. Both Option 1, keeping the status quo, and Option 2, keeping 
OHRV use consistent with the 2002 Management Plan amendment, would be consistent with 
both the management vision and CORD’s LCIP responsibilities. However, Option 1 needs to 
reflect CORD’s determination earlier in today’s meeting.” 
 
Adopted by Council on Resources and Development (7-0) 
December 8, 2016 
 





 Council on Resources and Development 

Draft Minutes 

July 12, 2018 

 

 

 

Page 1 

 

DRAFT Minutes – July 12, 2018 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT 

Jared Chicoine, Chair, Director, NH Office of Strategic Initiatives 

Elizabeth Muzzey, non-voting member, Department of Natural and Cultural Resources 

Christopher Way, Designee, NH Department of Business and Economic Affairs 

Timothy Drew, Designee, NH Department of Environmental Services 

William Ray, Designee, NH Housing Finance Authority 

Tracy Boisvert, Designee, NH Department of Natural and Cultural Resources 

Glenn Normandeau, Executive Director, NH Fish and Game Department 

Marta Modigliani, Designee, NH Department of Safety 

 

OTHERS PRESENT 

Michael Klass, NH Office of Strategic Initiatives 

Noah Hodgetts, NH Office of Strategic Initiatives 

Richard Cook, Designee, NH Fish and Game Department 

 

Location: New Hampshire Department of Revenue Administration (Training Room), 109 

Pleasant Street (Medical & Surgical Building), Concord, NH 03301 

 

ROLL CALL AND INTRODUCTIONS 

  

The meeting was opened at 1:07 PM by Chairman Chicoine. CORD members and OSI staff 

introduced themselves.  

 

I. LAKE SUNAPEE PUBLIC BOAT ACCESS 

 

A. Acceptance of public comment regarding the Lake Sunapee Public Boat Access 

Development Commission reports. 

 

Chairman Chicoine opened the acceptance of public comment, noting that written and oral 

comments will be posted to the CORD website. The Chairman asked the agencies impacted by 

the Lake Sunapee Public Boat Access Development Commission Reports – the Fish and Game 

Department, and the Department of Natural and Cultural Resource to provide feedback at the 

September 13, 2018 CORD meeting. The Chairman asked audience members speaking to keep 

their comments to three minutes to allow everyone a chance to speak. 

 

NH Office of Strategic Initiatives 

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall 

Concord, NH 03301 

Phone: 603-271-2155 

Fax: 603-271-2615 



 Council on Resources and Development 

Draft Minutes 

July 12, 2018 

 

 

 

Page 2 

See Exhibit A attached hereto for submitted written and oral public comments. 

   

II. MINUTES 

 

A. Approval of May 10, 2018 draft minutes. 

 

Mr. Cook commented that on page one, Item II.A (Approval of January 11, 2018 meeting 

minutes), Mr. Drew (not Mr. Cook) noted that Commissioner Jasper should be listed as a 

Commissioner. Mr. Cook also noted that on page 2 under Item III.A (20018 SLR 001 – Ashland) 

that Churchill (Wildlife Management Area) is two words and provided additional clarification 

that the initial survey undertaken by the Squam Lake Association revealed several boundary 

issues and that a subsequent survey revealed there were several structures owned by Courtney 

Smith. 

 

MOTION: On a motion by Mr. Drew, seconded by Mr. Ray, the May 10, 2018 minutes 

with Mr. Cook’s proposed amendments were approved unanimously by the council. 

   

III. OTHER BUSINESS 

 

A. Update re 2018 SLR 005 – Windham 

 

Ms. Boisvert reminded members that she had requested that 2018 SLR 005 be tabled at the May 

10, 2018 meeting. Ms. Boisvert then asked to withdraw 2018 SLR 005 from consideration and 

resubmit a new application at a later date due to a newly discovered encroachment in the railroad 

right of way. She noted that the new SLR submission may involve a land swap. Mr. Drew asked 

if there would be any changes to the wetland permits. Ms. Boisvert replied that the land 

encroachment wouldn’t affect the wetland permits. 

 

MOTION: Ms. Modigliani moved to allow the withdrawal of 2018 SLR 005, which was 

seconded by Mr. Drew. The motion was approved unanimously by the council. 

 

B. Smart Growth Update 

 

Mr. Klass reminded CORD that they have a statutory responsibly to discuss smart growth. He 

further noted that the 2016 Smart Growth report recommended that CORD have regular smart 

growth updates. Mr. Klass noted that the definition of smart growth is contained in RSA 9-B. He 

then summarized Smart Growth in a sentence as “smart growth is about promoting development 

and that it is good for the community, environment and the economy”. Mr. Klass asked CORD 

members to consider incorporating smart growth principles into projects as appropriate. Ms. 

Muzzey noted that she read a Plan New Hampshire press release that noted that the organization 

had recently announced several awards based on smart growth criteria. She noted that if CORD 

was interested, she could ask Plan NH Executive Director Robin LeBlanc to speak to CORD 

about specific smart growth examples. Mr. Drew noted that DES has an energy efficiency – 

smart growth coordinator, Chris Gogland, that could also possibly speak at a CORD meeting. 

 

https://www.nh.gov/osi/planning/programs/cord/meetings/documents/20180510-minutes.pdf


 Council on Resources and Development 

Draft Minutes 

July 12, 2018 

 

 

 

Page 3 

C. Nash Stream State Forest ATV Trail Update 

 

Ms. Boisvert noted that the Westside Trail recently had a relatively significant washout. She 

advised that she will be coming back to CORD at the September meeting with a proposal to 

reroute the Westside Trail to a more appropriate location and repair the washout that happened. 

Mr. Drew asked if there was a stream crossing. Ms. Boisvert replied that there are no stream 

crossings as the Westside Trail was originally a forest management road. 

 

D. Next Meeting 

 

Chairman Chicoine reminded the Council that the next meeting will be held on September 13, 

2018. 

 

IV. MEETING ADJOURNAMENT 

 

MOTION: With business completed, Mr. Ray moved to adjourn the meeting, which Ms. 

Boisvert seconded. The motion was approved unanimously by the Council. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 2:14 PM. 

 



 Council on Resources and Development 

Draft Minutes 

August 31, 2018 

 

 

 

Page 1 

 

DRAFT Minutes – August 31, 2018 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT 

Jared Chicoine, Chair, Director, NH Office of Strategic Initiatives 

Tracy Boisvert, Designee, NH Department of Natural and Cultural Resources 

Timothy Drew, Designee, NH Department of Environmental Services 

Shawn Jasper, Commissioner, NH Department of Agriculture 

Steve LaBonte, Designee, NH Department of Transportation 

Stephen McLocklin, Designee, NH Department of Administrative Services 

Jeffery Meyers, Commissioner, NH Department of Health and Human Services 

William Ray, Designee, NH Housing Finance Authority 

Christopher Way, Designee, NH Department of Business and Economic Affairs 

 

OTHERS PRESENT 

Michael Klass, NH Office of Strategic Initiatives 

Danielle Craver, NH Office of Strategic Initiatives 

Melissa St. Cyr, NH Department of Health and Human Services 

David Clapp, NH Department of Health and Human Services 

 

Location: New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives, Johnson Hall, 107 Pleasant Street, 

Concord, NH 03301 

 

I. ROLL CALL AND INTRODUCTIONS 

  

The meeting was opened at 9:30 AM by Chairman Chicoine.  

 

CORD members and others present introduced themselves.  

 

II. SURPLUS LAND REVIEW 

 

A. 2018 SLR 006 – Manchester.  Request from DHHS to lease excess capacity at the 

Sununu Youth Services Center to a non-governmental entity that will operate a 

Residential Adolescent Substance Use Disorder Treatment Facility through an 

agreement with the Department, pursuant to HB 517. 

 

DHHS Commissioner Meyers thanked the CORD members for attending a special meeting and 

provided an overview of the project, which consists of the addition of 36 beds to the Sununu 

NH Office of Strategic Initiatives 

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall 

Concord, NH 03301 

Phone: 603-271-2155 

Fax: 603-271-2615 



 Council on Resources and Development 

Draft Minutes 

August 31, 2018 

 

 

 

Page 2 

Youth Services Center for an adolescent substance abuse treatment facility, utilizing space in an 

existing building.  David Clapp then provided additional summary about the property and the 

proposed project.  Michael Klass reported that he has received four comments regarding the 

project from Department of Environmental Services, Division of Historical Resources, Lakes 

and Rivers Management Advisory Committees, and the Department of Transportation’s Bureau 

of Rail & Transit.  None of those comments objected to the project. 

 

 MOTION: Commission Jasper moved to recommend 2018 SLR 006 for approval.  The 

motion was seconded by Tim Drew.  The council voted unanimously to approve the motion. 

 

 

III. OTHER BUSINESS 

 

A. Misc. Scheduling Matters 

 

Chairman Chicoine observed that Fiscal was scheduled for the same day as the September 21st 

CORD Meeting and noted that the conflict would prevent some necessary parties from 

participating in the previously scheduled Wild Goose presentations on that day.  A discussion 

ensued and the consensus was to move the Wild Goose presentations from September 21st to the 

November 8th CORD meeting. 

 

Chairman Chicoine noted a continued need for the September 21st meeting to address a Nash 

Stream Forest issue.  Tracy Boisvert reminded the council members about the issue, which 

involves erosion to a portion of the west side road trail.  DNCR would be proposing to re-route 

the eroded section of the trail before winter because of its use as a snowmobile trail.  Further 

details would be provided to the council in due course. 

 

 

IV. MEETING ADJORNMENT 
 

MOTION: With business completed, Commissioner Jasper moved to adjourn the 

meeting, which Christopher Way seconded. The motion was approved unanimously by 

the Council. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 9:49 AM. 

 

 

Reminder - 2018 Meeting Dates 

 January 11   March 8 (cancelled due to inclement weather) 

 May 10   July 12 (meeting to be held in NHDRA’s Training Room) 

 August 31 – special meeting 

 September 21 (meeting to be held in OSI Conf. Room) 

November 8 (meeting location TBD) 

 



 

Exhibit A 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

NH Council on Resources and Development 

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall Concord, NH 03301-3834 

 

July 6, 2018  

 

Re: Support for the Lake Sunapee Public Boat Access Development Commission’s Majority Report 

  

 

Dear Members of the Council on Resources and Development,  

 

I am writing to you in support of the Lake Sunapee Public Boat Access Development Commission’s majority 

report.  

 

The Lake Sunapee Protective Association and I, as a resident of Newbury, NH are all supportive of public 

access to Lake Sunapee. We support the current boat launches and public beaches that today allow the public to 

enjoy the lake. (In fact, LSPA contributed $10,000 in 1989 for the "Wild Goose" site and the Newbury Planning 

Board approved Wilbur Lapage's car-top proposal).    

 

But "Wild Goose" is the wrong site for the current proposed NH F&G ramp and parking lot. There are serious 

road safety issues, serious stormwater runoff issues, and a very large cost of $3M, including the bond service. 

Purchased for conservation purposes (LCIP program), the site is much better suited to car-top access. 

 

Since its acquisition, Fish and Game has dramatically altered its original proposal, requiring paving nearly the 

entire site, featuring a double boat ramp. The attached visuals show the magnitude of the effort to build the 

proposed ramp and parking lot.  It calls for some blasting and a huge amount of soil removal, including 14 feet 

in some areas (over 6,000 cu. yds. = 600-900 double-axle truck loads).  

 

About 1 mile down the road is another state access point on Lake Sunapee, NH State Park's Mt. Sunapee State 

Beach site. It has no road safety issues, far less stormwater issues (it is flat, not sloped), and can be improved, 

with increased parking and some dredging.   

 

Fish & Game has declared there is no public access to Lake Sunapee. But attachments show you that there is 

indeed access to Lake Sunapee: 5 public boat launches, all free except the State Beach, with the entering boat 

numbers reported by LSPA’s part-time lake host program.  In the past 16 years, there has been over 270% 

increase in the number of boats from 1,500 to almost 5,600 as you can see in the attached chart.  

 

The issue is not public access, but increased parking.  Fish and Game proposed plan gains about 31 trailered 

parking spaces on the lake.  

 

F&G’s current proposed use of the Wild Goose site has profound issues. That is why the majority report of the 

Lake Sunapee Public Boat Access Development Commission recommendations were: 1) near-term increase in 

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 1 



access for trailered boats on Lake Sunapee, 2) allow the NH Department of Fish and Game to explore new 

options for deep water boat access points, 3) provide increased access for the public to Lake Sunapee, 4) end the 

long-term divisions and concerns associated with the Wild Goose boat launch site.  

 

The commission strongly recommended that the Wild Goose site be removed from consideration as a 

Department of Fish and Game boat launch site by way of CORD transferring the property to the Division of 

State Parks by the power granted to CORD in RSA162-C:6.    

We strongly agree.  

 

Respectfully, 

 

 
 

June Fichter 

Executive Director, 

Lake Sunapee Protective Association 

And Newbury resident 

 

603.763.2210 

JuneF@lakesunapee.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 2

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 4



 

 

Summary Sheet 

Proposed NH Fish & Game Double Boat Launch and Parking Lot at Wild Goose 

Lake Sunapee 

  

The 3-acre site in Newbury, NH, known as Wild Goose was purchased with Land Conservation Investment 

Funds (LCIP) funds in 1989. Lake Sunapee Protective Association (LSPA) spent $10,000 for an appraisal of the 

property at that time.  

 The land has a conservation easement on it. 

 NH DRED was initially to manage the property and project. DRED Parks Director Wilbur Lapage proposed 

a car-top only, low impact public access plan. LSPA and the Town of Newbury supported the plan 

wholeheartedly. 

 After its purchase, the land was reassigned to NH Fish & Game (F&G). F&G announced that the goal of the 

project was a motorized boat launch. Various proposals were discussed. 

 LSPA proposed improving the existing motorized boat launch at Park's State Beach which is located a mile 

down the road from the Wild Goose site.  

 The State Beach park and boat launch was built circa 1950 by the state on filled-in wetlands with redirected 

streams. For over 60 years, it has proven to be a popular park and launch site where boats and swimmers co-

exist comfortably.  

 There are serious disadvantages for launching motorized trailered boats at the proposed Wild Goose site: 

1. Excavation to remove 6,500 cubic yards or more (600 to 900 double-axle dump truck loads) of existing 

material. 

2. Altered traffic patterns along State Road Route 103, creating dangerous entry and exit access to Route 

103. (A recent DOT Safety Audit confirms sight distance issues.) 

3. Installation of a costly, but ineffective, stormwater handling system. 

4. Costly ongoing maintenance of the proposed launch and parking lot. 

5. An estimated price tag of over $2 million for completion, not including bonding costs. 

6. Unfavorable prevailing winds for boat launching. 

7. All-night lighting, which is against Newbury's town regulations.   

 

LSPA believes that the Wild Goose site is more appropriate for a car-top, low impact public access boat launch. 

 

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 5



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 6



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

SWHT = Seasonal High Water Table 

 

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 7



 

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 8

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text



Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 9



Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 10

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text



Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 11

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text



Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 12

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text



Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 13

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text



CORD Public Meeting – July 12, 2018 

Oral Public Comments on Reports of the Lake Sunapee Public Boat Access Development Commission  

 

  Page 1 of 3  
 

Name  Town/Organization Comments 

Mayor Charlene 

Lovett 

City of Claremont -

Mayor 

The Commission’s majority report omitted references to resolutions from Claremont, Newport, county 

commissioners, and conservation commissioners supporting the Wild Goose site. Also concerned about 

recommendation 4 of the majority report that using the state beach launch will result in destruction of the smelt 

habitat from dredging. The majority report also omitted potential abutter challenges from dredging of the 

brook, safety concerns of utilizing the state beach, economic impacts to the state beach from increased boat 

traffic, and oil slick contamination. 

Stacey Kailyn 

Schultz 

Newbury Concerned about increasing boat parking at the Sunapee state beach due to personal experience. Tried to launch 

outboard 14 foot motor boat from the state beach launch, but currently there is no practical way to do so. The 

other boat launches around the lake including Sunapee Harbor are not feasible due to a lack of parking. After 

inquiring ahead of time about launching boat from the state beach launch last summer, attempted to do so with 

family that was visiting. At the state beach launch point, lake host confirmed that the water was deep enough as 

long as you stay in the middle of channel. However, upon launching the boat hit a large rock which damaged 

the propeller. Upon returning a few weeks later in a kayak, saw an inboard motor boat that was completely 

beached. In conclusion there is no viable boat access from the state beach, and increased parking at the state 

park isn’t going to help. Don’t understand why the state is dragging its feet to build the boat launch. Sunapee is 

a public body of water and there shouldn’t be a social/economic barrier. 

Todd Baldwin Thornton Per the Surplus Land Review process, asked if agency controlling property (Wild Goose) must initiate whether 

the property is disposed of/transferred. 

Don Clarke Claremont Served on fish and game commission for 9 months as acting member and have been involved with the Wild 

Goose site since it was acquired by LCIP. Years ago spent weekend doing survey of boat access adequacy. 

Main complaint is that surrounding towns without waterfront access weren’t represented on commission 

including Claremont, Newport, and most of the towns in Sullivan County. Also believe that the Commission 

was stacked in the wrong direction. After having gone through an extensive search of 20 alternate sites, which 

were deemed not adequate, believe Wild Goose is the only adequate site. As a result believe that transfer to 

DNCR would deprive people of adequate public access to the Lake. As there is no 15 acre flat terrain site 

around the lake, is completely against giving up Wild Goose. 

Kathryn Holmes Newbury Lives on Lake Sunapee in house that grandfather built in 1891 and have been involved with Wild Goose since 

1991. One of the biggest problems with Wild Goose is the exit from the launch site onto Route 103 is an 

accident waiting to happen.  Also an issue that Sunapee already has cyanobacteria, milfoil. Believes that State 

Park channel can be cleaned and can be an excellent site for an expanded boat launch. Also believes it would be 

less costly to add parking to the Sunapee Harbor and Georges Mills boat launch areas.  Believes there is a need 

for a study of how many boats the lake can safely handle after experiencing a high number of boats during July 

4
th
. In conclusion, is very against the boat launch at Wild Goose in part due to having to dredge and take out 

two cribs. 

  

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 14

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text



CORD Public Meeting – July 12, 2018 

Oral Public Comments on Reports of the Lake Sunapee Public Boat Access Development Commission  

 

  Page 2 of 3  
 

Name  Town/Organization Comments 

Karen Ebel Newbury and New 

London State 

Representative – 

Merrimack District 

5 

Here on behalf of constituents to support the recommendations of the majority report. Urge CORD to transfer 

Wild Goose from Fish and Game to the Division of State Parks. Noted finding #2 that Fish and Game spent 27 

years trying to develop the site and that it is time for a change. As a member of House Public Works Finance 

Committee, reviewed $2.3 million Fish and Game proposal to develop Wild Goose proposal. Primarily due to 

cost, the Legislature rejected the proposal. Newbury and area mutual aid towns are opposed to developing Wild 

Goose as a boat launch site. In March 2017, DOT finalized report showing hazards of Route 103 and Birch 

Grove Road intersection. The Town of Newbury can’t afford the needed road improvements. Also concerned 

that high cost of $2.1 million + $1 million for bonding debt service would create only 32 boat launch spaces 

and that only $150,000 was requested for road safety improvements. Cited NH RSA 233-A which states that 

public boat access should be owned and controlled by the state, noting that Lake Sunapee has five public boat 

launches and all are free, except Sunapee State Park. Understands that boat parking at Sunapee State Park 

Parking is limited, but believes there is adequate access. Also noted that the Town of Sunapee just spent 

$40,000 on improving boat launch at Sunapee Harbor. In conclusion, asked for support of the commission 

majority report to transfer property. 

Henry Thomas 

Jr. 

Town of Newbury -

Fire Chief 

Noted that Wild Goose site is not safe from public safety/traffic standpoint. Improvement to the state beach 

including dredging would be better and safer. 

June Fichter Lake Sunapee 

Protective 

Association -

Executive Director 

Speaking in support of the majority report. LSPA and most of the towns support public access. LSPA paid 

$10,000 to help acquire Wild Goose back in 1991, but Wild Goose is the wrong site for the boat launch, due to 

serious traffic and stormwater issues. Believes Wild Goose is better suited for lighter use. Noted that Fish and 

Game plan would require paving nearly entirely Wild Goose site, which would require 14 foot deep soil 

removal (6,000 cubic yards – 600-900 double-axle truckloads) plus blasting. State beach has no traffic issues 

and far fewer stormwater issues due to being a flat site. Chandler Brook at the state beach, which is manmade, 

shouldn’t be a barrier to further dredging. As previously mentioned, there are five existing public access boat 

launches around Sunapee. LSPA in tracking boats has seen an increase of 1,500 to 5,600 boats per year over the 

last sixteen years. In conclusions, LSPA believes that adding additional parking at the state beach would 

alleviate many of the problems and that Fish & Game’s preferred use of Wild Goose has profound issues. 

Therefore, LSPA supports the majority report recommendation to transfer Wild Goose to the Division of Parks. 

Gene Porter Public Water Access 

Advisory Board- 

Member, 

Representative of 

Motorized Boat 

Population 

Motorized boat members look forward to improved motorized boat access to the sixth largest lake in New 

Hampshire. Majority report is very poorly reasoned. Believes that the State DOT can put in traffic control 

devices to slow or stop traffic for boats to enter and exit the site. The state beach is clearly not an adequate site 

for adequate motor boat access like there is at Lake Winnipesauke. Recommend CORD looks at the minority 

report as well as the majority report. 

  

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 15

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text



CORD Public Meeting – July 12, 2018 

Oral Public Comments on Reports of the Lake Sunapee Public Boat Access Development Commission  

 

  Page 3 of 3  
 

Tom Quarles Public Water Access 

Advisory Board - 

Chair, Lake Sunapee 

Public Boat Access 

Development 

Commission - 

Member 

As author of minority report with Director Normandeau and Rep. Peter Hansen, hearing a lot of the same public 

opinion heard in the past. While divided, there are some consensus findings including deep water access 

lacking on Lake Sunapee. Also, state park boat launch is inadequate due to dredging issues which is why 

DRED (DNCR) and DES abstained from the report. Majority report findings of adding a few parking spaces to 

the state beach are an inadequate band aid. Only adequate solution is Wild Goose. Only potential negative is 

safety. DOT didn’t concern itself with safety issues entering and exiting Birch Cove Road. Saying that this will 

cost taxpayers $3 million is misleading as 75% is paid for by the federal government. Only bonding 25%, 

which is paid for by $5 motor boat registration fee. 

Town 

Administrator 

Kim Hallquist 

Town of New 

London –  

Town Administrator 

The New London Board of Selectmen is against development of Wild Goose based on public safety concerns 

of police and fire chiefs. The New London Board of Selectmen supports the majority report that the Wild 

Goose site not be developed as a boat launch site. 

Ryan McNutt City of Claremont -

City Manager 

Would like to express support for the minority report. State has been moving towards development of Wild 

Goose since 1991. Only since August of last year when the DES wetland permits expired, has the door been 

closed on Wild Goose. Traffic concern shouldn’t be one of the main issues since DOT didn’t study the impact 

of a boat launch, only the existing conditions. RSA mandates adequate public access of lake. Commission put 

together last year, as a largely political exercise, to move away from the most suitable site without producing an 

adequate alternative. Believes the minority report was more well-rounded. Also note that Lake Sunapee 

Protective Association has a full time executive director, whose mission is to prevent public access on Lake 

Sunapee. 

Kelly Buchanan New Hampshire 

Lakes Association – 

Advocacy Program 

Coordinator 

Support the majority report. Fully supportive of the public access to the public waters. Need responsible choice. 

Wild Goose is not the responsible location for adequate public access. 

Arthur Burit Davis Cabins - 

Owner 

Davis Cabins abut Wild Goose site. Wild Goose launch site itself has large rock between two launches, as well 

as two rock cribs which are not expected to be removed. Heard that Fish and Game is ready to move on from 

site. Believes development of Wild Goose will have a negative effect on business. Support the majority report 

of the commission including property transfer from Fish and Game to DNCR. 

Nancy Marashio Lake Sunapee 

Public Boat Access 

Development 

Commission - 

Member 

One of the signers of the majority report. Noted that in 1991 when Wild Goose was purchased, the Town of 

Newbury was told by LCIP that Wild Goose would only be used for car top boat access not as the primary 

motorized boat access point to Lake Sunapee. A subsequent 1991 public boat access plan concluded that a 31-

space deep water boat launch would require a 15 to 30 acre site. The Department of Transportation didn’t study 

traffic impacts of public boat access as could only study what did exist not what could exist. Majority and 

minority members on commission concluded that there should be two year window to search for other sites. 

Garret 

Graaskamp 

Gilmanton If highway safety issue was so critical, why wasn’t DOT on the Commission? In terms of safety, road 

intersection can be fixed. Could have separate safety issue of trailers mixing with pedestrians at the state beach 

boat launch. 

 

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text
7-12-18 Public Comment page 16

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text

Noah.D.Hodgetts
Typewritten Text


	West Side Rd CORD Package.pdf
	DOC_20180913101217
	DOC_20180913103143
	West Side Trail Reroute
	Nash ReRoute LiDAR
	CORD pics
	Appendix_A_CORD_LetterFindingsGuidanceMotionDec2016
	Signed Decision Letter
	Motion on Existing Trails - Findings.docx
	Motion on Guidance to DRED Regarding ATV Trail Options





